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MOBILE STREAMS PLC

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Group revenue in 2007 was £9.1m, an 11% increase on 2006 (£8.2m). Trading EBITDA* was a loss of £1.2m for
the period (2006: breakeven), Loss before tax was £4.7m (2006: £2.0m).

During 2007, Mobile Streams invested heavily in building a global mobile content business covering 13 subsidiaries
on 4 continents. Leveraging its expertise and technology platform across multiple operating regions both increases
Mobile Streams’ return on technology investment and assists its global customers with the implementation of their
mobile strategies. The Company’s global footprint and geographical scale has enabled it to reduce its dependence on
any one customer or region.

2007 was a year of significant change for the mobile content industry. The traditional means of distributing mobile
content through portals operated by mobile network operators was challenged by the fact that growth from this
revenue source by and large stalled during the period. As such, mobile operators turned to new business partnerships
with internet companies such as Google and Yahoo! to take their mobile content business to the next level.
However, these initiatives were largely experimental and proved demanding to deploy technically. This transition
and instability ereated an environment which led to losses being accumulated by the Company as it waited for
delayed mobile internet launches.

In the context of these industry changes 2007 was a transitional year for the Company, its first full year as a public
company. The management was required to respond to the changes in market climate, to integrate the three
acquisitions made during 2006 and to explore new business medels such as platforms and content creation.

As the year progressed, it became clear to management that the Company would need to pare back and focus its
activities, which contributed to the end of year losses. As such, two company divisions were created - Managed
Services for mobile content supplied to mobile network operators and media companies - and Consumer Services to
focus on the emerging Mobile Internet. Building an on and off portal presence in its operating markets enables
Mobile Streams to leverage its local content, billing relationships and market presence to achieve scale and
maximize future returns. This enables the Company to serve the current operator portal business model whilst
investing in new deployments of search engines such as Google and Yahoo! by the network operators.

Outlook and Trading

Since the beginning of the 2008 financial year, Mobile Streams has traded at around the breakeven mark at an
EBITDA* level. There is a small monthly cash outfiow from the investment in the Vuesia platform. Revenues from
Managed Services have been solid, with growing revenue coming from the Asia Pacific region where the Company
has carved out a position as the games channel manager for several network operators such as Optus Australia,
Vodafone Australia, SingTel Singapore and AIS Thailand. New launches of Consumer Services powered by our
Ringtones.com brand have continued in markets such as Australia and Argentina where the Company already has
established operations. The Company expects to see a continuation in these market trends during 2008, with overall
revenues from managed operator services remaining broadly flat along with continued launches of consumer
services, albeit with small initial volumes, in select markets where Mobile Streams has current operations and the
search engines are establishing partnerships with local mobile operators.

Roger Parry
Chairman

*Calculated as loss before tax, interest, amortisation, depreciation, impairments, share compensation expense and
fund raising and flotation cost.
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MOBILE STREAMS PLC

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT

Traditiontally, mobile network operators have managed their mobile content portals, usuatly appointing master
content providers such as Mobile Streams to aggregate and refresh content channels within the portal. This business
model limited the number of suppliers whose content would be presented in the portal. For incumbent suppliers such
as Mobile Streams it meant relatively consistent and predictable revenue streams.

In order to stimulate new growth in mobile content, the mobile operators formed partnerships with mobile portals
such as Yahoo! and Google. This tread started mainly in the UK and European regions in 2007. Consumers
immediately migrated away from using the operator portals as a means to discover and purchase content and turned
instead to the Google search box that they were familiar with from the PC Internet. Despite this there was little new
growth in Mobile Internet usage, rather the usage simply migrated from en-portal to off-portal traffic.

Mobile Streams anticipated these developments and hired its first head of consumer services in mid 2006 to prepare
for their launch, Whilst our position as an operator portal supplier would be reduced, the overall opportunity for the
Company would be enlarged. To use the case of Vodafone, Mobile Streams supplied the comedy channel to
Vodafone Live in the UK, but would now have the opportunity to sell not just comedy content but more music,
games, graphics and adult content too. What we did not anticipate was the time it would take for these deployments
to be stabilised from a technology standpoint. Additionally, the operators continued to tweak the Mobile Internet
model as they sought to change the balance between on and off portal search traffic, which affected management
and development of the services. The instability and immaturity in consumer services has led the Company to delay
the timescales over which it expects the Consumer Services business to reach critical mass and scale, locally and
globally.

Mobile Streams solidified its key operator relationships in Europe, North America, Latin America and Asia during
2007. We have a number of key supplier relationships with network cperators on several continents. Our business
covers the main types of mobile content that consumers are most interested in; music, adult and games. We have the
opportunity to distribute this content on and off portal.

The Company’s strategic partnership with Liberty Media remained strong during the year, resulting in the successful
launch in the USA in December 2007 of Zoombak, the mobile location services company. Mobile Streams earns an
annual management service fee, a capped percentage of Zoombak’s revenues and profits and holds warrants over
10% of the Zoombak equity. 2008 will see the full deployment and rollout of Zoombak in the US and other markets
such as the UK,

As such, | am convinced that there is significant incremental opportunity for Mobile Streams to strengthen its results
by leveraging all the investments it has made and knowledge it has gained in 2007 and for the nine years that the
Company has been operating. As the Mobile Internet opens up around the world over time, 1 am confident that the
Company is well placed to benefit.

Simon Buckingham
Chief Executive Officer
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MOBILE STREAMS PLC

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Group revenue in the year was £9.1m, an 11% increase on 2006 (£8.2m). Trading EBITDA* was a loss of £1,.2m
for the period (2006: breakeven). Loss before tax was £4.7m (£2.0m). Overall gross margin was 54.9% (2006:
58.6%).

We now have a genuine global distribution footprint with 13 subsidiaries on 4 continents. Leveraging our expertise
and technology platform across multiple operating regions both increases our return on technology investment and
assists our global customers with the implementation of their mobile strategies. Our global footprint and
geographical scale has enabled us to reduce our dependence on any one customer or region, and facilitate our
growth.

The Group has adopted International Financial Reporting Standards for the first time. The principal impact of this
change is the requirement to separately identify intangible assets acquired in business combinations. The impact of
these changes are detailed in note 26 of the accounts.

£1,467,000 was invested during the year on property, plant and equipment, and intangibles assets. This was
predominantly for the further development of the Vuesia platform. The Group continue to invest in the development
of the Vuesia platform, albeit at 2 much reduced rate as it focuses on earning returns from investments in prior years.

The Group incurred an impairment charge of £2,206,000 relating to goodwill and intangible assets. The impairment
charge under IFRS differs to the impairment charge under UK GAAP as follows:

Impairment under UK GAAP 1,583,000
Additional impairment under IFRS 623,000
Total 2,206,000

The additienal impairment under IFRS relates to deferred tax on intangibles assets acquired via business
acquisitions. TAS 12 requires the group to add deferred tax on intangibles assets acquired via business combinations
to goodwill and test for impairment annually. Further detail of the impairment can be seen at note 12,

The Group incurred a net cash outflow from operations of £0.4m (2006: outflow £1.7m); net cash outflows from
investing activities were £1.4m (2006: outflow £3.8m). The cash balance at 31 December 2007 was £2.3m (2006:
£4.1m).

Basic earnings per share amounted to a loss of 12.024 per share (2006 loss of 6.753p).

Adjusted earnings per share (excluding depreciation, amortisation, impairments, flotation/fund raising costs and
share compensation experse) amounted to a loss of 1.785p (2006; profit of 0.325p).

J Colquhoun
Finance Director

*Calculated as loss before tax, interest, amortisation, depreciation, impairments, share compensation expense and
fund raising and flotation cost.



MOBILE STREAMS PLC

DIRECTORS REPORT

The Directors present their report and the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December

2007.

The principal activity of the group is the provision of technology and services for the publication of content,

primarily for distribution on wireless devices.

Results and dividends

The trading results for the year and the Group's/Company’s financial position at the end of the year are shown in

the attached financial statements, and are discussed further in the Business Review below.

The Company will not be paying a dividend this year,
BUSINESS REVIEW

Financial overview

During the period the Company continued to grow revenues which increased 11% to £9.1m (2006: £8.2m).

The operating loss of £4.8m (2006: loss £2.2m) was due to asset impairment, one time restructuring costs and a

disappointing performance for the European region.

The Directors are satisfied with the progress made during the year and believe that Mobile Streams Plc is well

placed to take advantage of the continued opening up of the Mobile Internet.

Financial performance
Financial performance for the year has been analysed as follows:

Year to 31

December

2007

£000's

Revenue 9,098
Gross profit 4,990
Trading EBITDA* (1,239)
Loss before tax (4,656)

Yearto 31
December
2006
£000's
8,223
4,821

“n
(1,969)

Change

£000's
875
169
(1,198)
(2,687)

* calculated as loss before tax, amortisation, depreciation, interest, flotation/fundraising costs, share compensation

expense and impairment of assets,
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MOBILE STREAMS PLC

DIRECTORS REPORT

Sirategy

The Directors consider there to be one class of business, being the distribution of mobile phone
content. This is managed in two divisions:

- Managed Services: providing mobile content services to mobile operators and media companies
- Consumer Services: selling content directly to consumers

A more detailed review of company performance can be found in the financial review.
Principal risks and uncertainties

The management of the business and the nature of the Group's/Company's strategy are subject to a number of
risks.

The Directors have set out below the principal risks facing the business.
Contracts with Mobile Network Operators (MNOs)

While Mobile Streams maintains relationships with numerous MNOs in the various territories, a small number of
operators account for a high portion of the Company’s business.

As the Company grows, management are using geographic and product diversity to counter this risk.
Contracts with rights holders

The majority of content provided by Mobile Streams is licensed from rights holders, While Mobile Streams is not
dependent on any single rights holder for its entertainment content, termination, non-renewal or significant
renegotiation of a contract could result in lower revenue.

Competition

Competition from alternative providers could adversely affect operating results by either providing price
pressure, or by replacement.

Evolution of mobile entertainment content

Mobile entertainment content is constantly evolving in terms of what is popular, how it is distributed and
business models,

Management constantly monitor changes in the market and invest in new and evolving areas to remain at the
forefront of the industry. This has already been demonstrated in the historical changes from mono-tones, to
polyphonic tones to truetones and video, and more recently games.
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MOBILE STREAMS PLC

DIRECTORS REPORT

Fluctuations in currency exchange rates

Approximately 69% of our revenue relates to overseas operations. As a Company, we are therefore exposed to
foreign currency fluctuations and the financial condition of the Company may be adversely impacted by foreign
currency fluctuations.

Currency exposure is not hedged.
Dependencies on key executives and personnel
The success of the business is substantially dependent on the Executive Directors and senior management team.

The Company has incentivised all key and senior personnel with stock options and has taken out key man insurance
policies on some of the key personnel.

Intellectual Property Rights

The protracted and costly nature of litigation, particularly in North America, may make it difficult to take a swift
or decisive actien to prevent infringement of the Company’s intellectual property rights.

Although Directors believe that the Company’s content and Vuesia technology platform and other intellectual
property rights do not infringe the IP rights of others, third-parties may assert claims of infringement which
could be expensive to defend or settle,

Technology Risk

A significant portion of the future revenues are dependent on the Vuesia platform. Any instability er
interruption of its availability for an extended pericd could have an adverse impact on the Company’s financial
position.

Mobile Streams has invested in resilient hardware architecture and maintains a software contrel process to
minimise this risk.

Management controls and reporting procedures and execution

The ability of the Company to implement its strategy in a competitive market requires effective planning and
management control systems. The Company’s future growth will depend upon its ability to expand whilst
improving operational, financial and management risk.

Regulatory Risk
The Company may be affected by the prevailing regulatory and legal environment.
Cash / Tax Risk

The Group cperates in many markets and under many different tax jurisdictions. A specific ruling or change in
tax regime could result in higher tax payments or increase the difficulty of repatriation of funds from those
markets.
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MOBILE STREAMS PLC

DIRECTORS REPORT

Financial risk management objectives and policies

"The Group uses various financial instruments. These include cash, equity investments, and various items, such
as trade receivables and trade payables that arise directly from its operations. The numerical disclosures relating
to these policies are set out in notes to the financial statements.

The existence of these financial instruments exposes the Group/Company to a number of financial risks, which
are described in more detail below. The Company does not currently use derivative products to manage foreign
currency or interest rate risk.

The main risks arising from the Group's/Company's financial instruments are market risk, currency risk, liquidity
risk and credit risk. The Directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below. These policies have remained unchanged from previous years.

Market risk

Market risk encompasses three types of risk, being currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk. In
this interest rate and price risk have been ignored as they are not considered a material risk to the business. The
Group's/Company's policies for currency risk is set out below.

Currency risk

The Group/Company is exposed to translation and transaction foreign exchange risk. Currently, there is
generally an alignment of assets and liabilities in a particular market, and no hedging instruments are used. In
Latin American markets, cash in excess of working capital is converted into a hard currency such as US Dollars.
The Company will continue to review its currency risk position as the overall business profile changes.

Liquidity risk

The Group/Company seeks to manage financial risk by ensuring sufficient liquidity is available ta meet
foreseeable needs and to invest cash assets safely and profitably.

The Group currently has no borrowing arrangement in place and prepares cashflow forecasts which are reviewed
at Board meetings to ensure liquidity.

Credit risk

The Group's/Company's principal financial assets are bank deposits, cash and trade receivables. The credit risk
associated with the bank deposits and cash is limited as the counterparties have high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies. The principal credit risk arises therefore from the Group's/Company's trade
receivables. Most of the Group’s trade receivables are large mobile neiwork operators or media groups. History
suggests that the credit risk is low.
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MOBILE STREAMS PLC

DIRECTORS REFORT

Directors and their interests

The present membership of the Board together with their beneficial interests in the shares of the Company are set

out below. All Directors with the exception of the foliowing served on the Board throughout the year.

J Sodha
P A Murphy
] A Celquhoun

Shares held or controlled by Directors

§ D Buckingham

M Carleton

1 AL Donn

P Tomlinson
R G Parry

J A Colquhoun

Options

Resigned May 2007
Resigned May 2007
Appointed May 2007

Ordinary
shares of
£0.002 each
31 December
2007

18,227,500

352,500
40,000
256,183

Ordinary
shares of
£0.002 each
31 December
2006

18,007,500
332,500

106,183

The table below summarises the exercise terms of the various options over ordinary shares of £0.002 (2006:
£0.002) each which have been granted, and were still outstanding at 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006.

R G Parry'
J Sodha?
J Sodha’
| J Sodha®
1 Colquhoun’

) Colquhoun®

Options
Held at
1 Jan
2007

Number

689,655
480,000
155,077
100,000

24,500

25,500

Options
Granted

during
the year

Number

Options
exercised
during
the year

Number

490,000

155,077

Gain on
exercise

of
options

£

3

180,000

62,000

Options
held at 31
December

2007

Number

689,655

24,500

25,500

Exercise
price

0.8700
0.0318
0.0020
0.4000
0.4600

0.4000

Earliest date
from which
exercisable

15 Feb 2007
1 Mar 2006
1 Mar 2006
7 Dec 2007
17 Aug 2007

7 Dec 2007

Latest expiry
date

14 Feb 2016
28 Feb 2015
28 Feb 2013
6 Dec 2016
16 Aug 2016

6 Dec 2016
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MOBILLE STREAMS PLC

DIRECTORS REPORT

1. Mr Parry's options were granied on 15 February 2006 and can be exercised from the first anniversary
of the grant date {33%), second anniversary of the grant date (67%) and third anniversary of grant date
(100%).

2. Mr Sodha’s existing options can be exercised from the first anniversary of the admission date (50%)
and second anniversary of the grant date (100%). The latest these options may be exercised is 1 March
2015. The options were exercised during the year.

3. Mr Sodha was granted 155,077 options on 15 February 20035 pursuant to a non-dilute option
agreement. These eptions can be exercised in line with the initial grant of options. The non-dilute
option agreement expired on the issuing of these options. The options were exercised during the year,

4. Mr Sodha left the Company before the options vested. Therefore forfeiting his entitlement.
5. Mr Colquhoun was appointed a director in May 2007. The options held by Mr Colquhoun were
granted as part of the EMI share option scheme before his appointment as a director, 33.33% of these
options may be exercised on or after the first anniversary of the grant date or the date, 66.67% of these
options may be exercised on or after the second anniversary of the grant date, 100% may be exercised
on or after the third anniversary of the grant date.

Post balance sheet events

There have been no material post balance sheet events.

Researech and development

The Group continues to invest in the development of its Vuesia media platform, During the year £1,040,000 of

costs (both internal and external) has been incurred. These costs have been capitalised as Intangible assets in the

balance sheet and are being amortised over their expected life in accordance with Group accounting policies

Policy on payment on trade payables

It is the Group’s policy to settle supplier accounts in accordance with individual terms of business. The number
of day’s purchases outstanding at the year end in réspect of the Company were 69 days (2006: 62 days)

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have elected to prepare financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Unijon, The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period, In
preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

» seleci suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
s make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
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MOBILE STREAMS PLC

DIRECTORS REPORT

»  state whether applicable International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements; and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Company will continue in business.

The Directors, to the best of their knowledge, state that:

» the financial statements, prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and loss of the Group; and

e the Directors' Report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business
and the position of the Group together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
that it faces.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the

Companies Act 1985. They are also responsible for safepuarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and ather irregularities,

In so far as the Directors are aware:

e there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are unaware; and
= the Directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.
The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included

on the Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions,

Auditors

Grant Thornton UK LLP have indicated their willingness to continue in office, and a resolution that they be re-
appointed will be proposed at the annual general meeting,

By order of the board

7

A Colguhoun
Company Secretary

25 March 2008
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR TO THE MEMBERS OF MOBILE
STREAMS PLC

We have audited the Group and parent Company financial statements (the "financial statements") of Mobile Streams
Plc for the year ended 31 December 2007 which comprise the principal accounting policies, the Group income
statement, the Group and parent Company balance sheets, the Group cash flow statement, the Group statement of
changes in shareholders' equity, the Group statement of recognised income and expense and notes 1 to 29, These
Group financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein,

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies
Act 1985. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we
are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

The Directors' responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the Group financial statements in accordance
with United Kingdom law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union, and for preparing the parent Company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom law and
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement of
Directors' Responsibilities,

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Irefand).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the
financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to
you whether in our opinion the information given in the Directors' Report is consistent with the financial statements.
The information given in the Directors' Report includes that specific information presented in the and Financial
Review and Chairman's statement that is cross referred from the Business Review section of the Directors' Report.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not
received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding
Directors' remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited
financial statements. The other information comprises only the Directors' Report, the Chairman's Statement, and the
Financial Review, We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements
or material inconsistencies with the financial statements. Qur responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the Directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Group's and Company's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit sc as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reascnable assurance that the financial statements
are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irrepularity or error. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.
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Opinion
In our opinion:

s the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, of the state of the Group's affairs as at 31 December 2007 and of its income statement for
the year then ended
the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985
the parent Company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdem
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of the parent Company's affairs as at 31 December
2007

+ the parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985; and

+ the information given in the Directors' Report is consistent with the financial statements.

Separate opinion in relation to IFRSs
As explained in the accounting policies for the Group financial statements, the Group in addition to complying with
its legal obligation to comply with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, has also complied with the [FRSs as

issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

In our opinion the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs, of the state of the
Group's affairs as at 31 December 2007 and of its income statement for the year then ended.

GRANT THORNTON UK LLP

REGISTERED AUDITOR

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Ui L'Lf
LA A e

London
25 March 2008
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MOBILE STREAMS PLC

Financial Statements for the year ended 3| December 2007

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

The consoelidated financial statements of Mobile Streams are for the 12 months ended 31 December 2007, They have
been prepared in accordance with applicable International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU,  All
references to [FRS in these statements refer to IFRS as adopted by the EU.

The policies set out below have been consistently applied to all years presented and comparative information has
been restated and represented under IFRS,

Mobile Streams’ consolidated financial statements have been previously prepared in accordance with UK's
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) until 31 December 2006. UK GAAP differs in some areas to
IFRS. In preparing the 2007 consolidated financial statements certain accounting, valuation and consolidation
methods have been adjusted to comply with IFRS, The comparative figures for 2006 have been restated to reflect
these adjustments, unless otherwise described in the accounting policies. The date of transition to IFRS was |
January 2006.

A conversion statement explaining reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition from UK GAAP to
IFRS on equity, net income and cash flows has been provided in note 26.

Preparation of financial statements in accordance with 1AS 1 requires the use of some key assumptions and other
sources of estimation uncertainty. It requires management of Mobile Streams to exercise judgement when applying
accounting policies. The specific areas involving a higher degree of judgement and/or complexity and areas where
assumptions/estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 2. The historical cost
convention has been applied, except as modified to account of the revaluation of certain financial instruments, as set
out in the accounting polices.

Consolidation - subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has the power to govern the operating and financial policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than half of the voting rights, Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date on which control
is lost.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of a
business combination is measured as the fair value of assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition, in line with IFRS 3, Business
Combinations. Any assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed that are identifiable are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. Goodwill is stated after separating out identifiable
intangible assets. The excess of the cost of a business combination over the fair value of the identifiable net assels
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of a business combination is less than the fair value, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated
in full. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Subsidiaries' accounting pelicies have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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MOBILE STREAMS PLC

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2007

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Foreign currency translation

(a) Presentational currency

The consolidated and parent company financial statements are presented in British pounds.
(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the presentational currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the date the transaction occurs. Any exchange gains or losses resulting from these transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities at balance date are recognised in the income statement. Any translation
gains or losses on non-monetary items are recognised in equity to the extent that they relate to gains and losses on
nen-monetary items which are recorded in equity. Otherwise, these translation gains or losses are recognised in the
income statement,

(c) Group companies

The financial results and position of all group entities that have a presentation currency different from the
presentation currency of the Group are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

i assets and liabilities for each balance sheet are translated at the closing exchange rate at the date of
balance sheet

il income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless it is not
a reasonable approximation, in which case translated at dates of transactions)

iii all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity {cumulative
translation reserve)

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment (PPE) are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the purchase of the items.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment less estimated residual value on a
straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The following rates and methods have been applied:

Leasehold imprevements Over the life of the lease
Plant and equipment 33% straight line
Office furniture Between 10% and 33% straight line

The asset’s residual value and useful live is reviewed, and adjusted if required, at each balance sheet date. The
carrying amount of an asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains/losses on disposal of assets are determined by comparing proceeds received to the carrying amount. Any
gain/loss is included in the income statement.
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Intangible assets
(2) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination over the fair value of net identifiable assets of
the acquired entity at the date of acquisition. This goodwill for subsidiaries is included in intangible assets (the
purchase method). Intangibles acquired in a business combination are acquired at fair value, Goodwill is tested
annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units for impairment testing. Excess of the fair value of net assets over the cost of the combination is
recognised immediately after acquisition in the income statement.

(b) Customer relationships

Customer relationships represent relationships that have been acquired through business combinations, To meet this
definition, the intangibles must be identifiable either by being separable, or by arising from contractual or other legal
rights. Intangibles acquired through business combinations are recognised at fair value. Where a reliable estimate
of useful life of the intangible can be obtained, the intangible asset is to be amortised using the straight line basis,
over the useful life. Where there is an indication of impairment of intangibles, the intangible will be tested for
impairment. The estimated useful live of customer relationships is 5 years.

(c) Technology based assets

Technology based assets represent assets that have been acquired through business combinations. To meet this
definition, the intangibles must be identifiable either by being separable, or by arising from contractual or other legal
rights. Intangibles acquired through business combinations are recognised at fair value. Where a reliable estimate
of useful life of the intangible can be obtained, the intangible asset is to be amoutised using the straight line basis,
over the useful life. Where there is an indication of impairment of intangibles, the intangible will be tested for
impairment. The estimated useful live of technology based assets is 5 years,

(d) Non-compete agreement

The non-compete agreement was acquired through the business combination of Mobile Streams (Hong Kong)
Limited. To meet this definition, the intangible must be identifiable either by being separable, or by arising from
contractual or other legal rights. Intangibles acquired through business combinations are recognised at fair value.
The estimated useful live of the non-compete agreement is 3.5 years. The intangible asset is to be amortised using
the straight line basis, over the useful life. Where there is an indication of impairment of intangibles, the intangible
will be tested for impairment.

(e) Media content

Media content represents intangible assets that have acquired from third parties and also these that are internally
generated. Content expenditure is charged to income in the year in which it {s incurred unless it meets the
recognition criteria of IAS 38 Intangible Assets. For internally generated media content to meet the criteria of an
intangible the Group must demonstrate the following criteria, Firstly the technical feasibility of completing the asset
so that it will be available for use, its intention to complete the intangible {or sell it), its ability to use or sell the
intangible, that the intangible will generate future economic benefit, adequate resources to complete the intangible
and the expenditure can be reliably measured. Intangible assets, if capitalised, are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the expected benefit.

Intangibles acquired from third parties are recognised at cost. Where a reliable estimate of useful life of the
intangible can be obtained, the intangible asset is to be amertised using the straight line basis, over the useful life.
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Where there is an indication of impairment of intangibles with a definite life, the intangible will be tested for
impairment. The estimated useful life of content is 2 years.

(f) Media platform development

Media platform developments represent intangible assets that have internally generated including capitalised direct
staff costs. Platform expenditure is charged to income in the year in which it is incurred unless it meets the
recognition criteria of IAS 38 Intangible Assets. To meet this criteria the Group must demenstrate the technical
feasibility of completing the asset so that it will be available for use, its intention to complete the intangible (or sell
it}, its ability to use or sell the intangible, that the intangible will generate future economic benefit, adequate
resources to complete the intangible and the expenditure can be reliably measured. Intangible assets, if capitalised,
are amortised on a straight-line hasis over the expected useful life. Where there is an indication of impairment of
intangibles with a definite life, the intangible will be tested for impairment. The estimated useful life of media
platform development is 3 years.

(g) Software

Software represents assets that have been acquired from third parties. To meet this definition, the intangibles must
be both identifiable and either separable, or arise from contractual or other legal rights. Tntangibles acquired from
third parties are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Where a reliable estimate of
useful life of the intangible can be obtained, the intangible asset is to be amortised using the straight line basis, over
the useful life. Where there is an indication of impairment of intangibles with a definite life, the intangible will be
tested for impairment.

Amortisation is shown in “depreciation, amortisation and impairment” in the income statement.

Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, such as goodwill, are not subject to amortisation, but are instead tested
annually for impairment and also tested whenever an event or change in situation indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are alse tested for impairment whenever an event or
change in situation indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised in
the income statement as the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined by the higher of the fair value of an asset less costs to sell and the value in use.

In order to assess impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which separate cash flows can be identified
{cash-generating units).

Impairment is shown in “depreciation, amortisation and impairment” in the income statement.
Research and development
Research expenditure is expensed in the year in which it is incurred.

Development expenditure is charged to income in the year in which it is incurred unless it meets the recognition
criteria of IAS 38 Intangible Assets.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held with financial institutions, and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Taxation
Current tax is the tax currently payable based on taxable profit for the year.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability methed, on temporary differences arising between the tax base
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements, However, deferred tax is
not provided on initial recognition of goodwill, nor on the initial recognition of an asset or liability unless the related
transaction is a business combination or affects tax or accounting profit. Deferred tax on temporary differences
associated with shares in subsidiaries is not provided if reversal of these temporary differences can be controlled by
the Group and it is probable that reversal will not occur in the foreseeable future, Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates known by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is seftled, Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax liabilities are provided in full, with no discounting.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense in the income statements,
except where they relate to items that are charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the related deferred
tax is also charged or credited directly to equity.

Provisions

Provisions, including those for legal claims, are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reffects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the increases specific to the liability, including risks specific to the
liability.

Financial Assets

The Group can classify its financial assets and liabilities into the below categories depending on the purpose for
which they were acquired. The classification is determined at initial recognition and is re-evaluated at every
reporting date.

a) Loans and receivables

Trade receivables are classified as loans and receivables. Trade receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and where there is no intention of trading,
They are included as current assets, unless maturity is greater than 12 months after balance sheet date. Trade
recejvables are included in trade and other receivables in the balance sheet. Trade receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and later measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methed, less provision for
impairment. An impairment provision for trade receivables is established when there is evidence the Group will not
be able to collect all amounts due according to the terms of the receivables. The provision is calculated as the
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difference between the receivable's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate.

b) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. They form part of non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months of balance sheet date. The Groups available for sale investments consist ef unlisted
securities.

All available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at balance sheet date, with subsequent changes in
value recognised in equity. Gains and losses arising from financial instruments classified as available-for-sale are
only recognised in profit or loss when they are sold ar when the investment is impaired. In the case of impairment,
any loss previously recognised in equity is transferred to the income statement, Losses recognised in the income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the income statement but charged to equity. Losses
recognised in prior period consolidated income statements resulting from the impairment of debt securities are
reversed through the income statement, if the subsequent increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is evidence that financial assets are impaired.
Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are obligations to pay cash or other financial assets and are recognised when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All finaneial liabilities are recorded initiaily at fair value, net
of direct issue costs.

A financial liability is derecognised only when the obligation is extinguished, that is, when the obligation is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

Trade payables

The Group's financial liabilities consist of trade and other payables, which are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual agreements of the instrument.
All interest-related charges are reported in the income statement are included in the income statement line items
"finance costs" or "finance income".

Revenue recognition

Revenue includes the fair value of sale of goods and services, net of value-added tax, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating intercompany sales within the Group. Revenue is recognised as follows:

a) Sales of poods

Sales of goods are recognised when a Group entity has delivered media content to the end consumer, who has
accepted the preduct and collectability of the related receivable is reasonably assured from the customer.
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b) Rendering of services

Rendering of services are recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered, by reference to
completion of the specific transaction, on the basis of the actual service provided as a proportion of the total services
to be provided.

c) Interest income

Interest receivable is recognised in the income statement using the effective interest method. 1f the collection of
interest is considered doubtful, it is suspended and excluded from interest income in the income statement.

d) Deferred income

Revenue that has been collected from customers but where the above conditions are not met is recorded in the
halance sheet under other debtors and deferred income and released to the income statement when the conditions are
met.

Share based payments

Employees (including Directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
iransactions, whereby employees render services in exchange for shares or rights over shares (‘equity-settled
transactions’).

Equity settled transactions
The Group has applied the requirements of IFRS 2 Share-based Payments to all grants of equity instruments.

The cost of equity settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the grant date of
the equity instruments granted. The fair value is determined by using the Black-Scholes method.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in retained earnings,
over the periods in which the performance conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (‘vesting date"), At each balance sheet date before vesting, the
cumulative expense is calculated, representing the extent to which the vesting period has expired and management's
best estimate of the achievemeit or vtherwise of non-market conditions and of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market conditions are taken into account in determining the fair value of the options granted, at
grant date, and are subsequently not adjusted for. The movement in cumulative expense since the previous balance
sheet date is recognised in the income statement, with a corresponding entry in equity.

No expense or increase in equity is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest. Awards where vesting is
conditional upon a market condition are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market condition is
satisfied, provided that alt other performance conditions are satisfied.
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Share eapital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are charged to the share premium
account.

Shares fo be issued

Shares to be issued are recorded in Balance Sheet when the Group has an obligation to issue shares, Shares to be
issued relate to deferred consideration on the acquisition of Mobile Streams Europe GmbH (formerly Cyoshi Mobile
GmbH). The shares are valued at the market value as of date of acquisition.

Leased assets

In accordance with IAS 17, all the Groups leases are determined to be operating leases and the payments made
under them are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the Jease term. Lease incentives are
spread over the term of the lease.

Operating leases are leases in which the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the leasee.
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Standards and interpretations not yet applied

The following new Standards and Interpretations, which are yet to become mandatory, have not been applied in the
2007 group financial statements.

Standard or Interpretation Effective for in reporting

periods starting on or after

1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (revised 2007) 1 January 2009

IFRS 2 Amendment to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment — Vesting 1 January 2009
Conditions and Cancellations

TAS 23 Borrowing Costs (revised 2007) 1 January 2009

1AS 32 Presentation and IAS 1 Presentation of Financial 1 January 2009

Statemenits - Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation

IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 1 July 2009
{Revised 2008)
IFRS 3 Business Combinations (Revised 2008) 1 July 2009
IFRS 8 Operating Segments 1 January 2009
IFRIC 11 IFRS 2- Group and Treasury Share Transactions 1 March 2007
IFRIC i2 Service Concession Arrangements 1 January 2008
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes 1 July 2008
IFRIC 14 1IAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, 1 January 2008

Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Standards management expect to effect the Group

Amendment to YAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (effective from 1 Januwary 2009)

This amendment affects the presentation of ewner changes in equity and introduces a statement of comprehensive
income. Preparers will have the option of presenting items of income and expense and components of other
comprehensive income either in a single statement of comprehensive income with subtotals, or in two separate
statements (a separate income statement followed by a statement of other comprehensive income). This amendment
does not affect the financial position or results of the Group but will give rise to additional disclosures.
Management is currently assessing the detailed impact of this amendment on the Group's financial statements.

Amendment to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment — Vesting Conditions and Cancellations (effective from 1
January 2009)

This amendment affects share based payments. All cancellations, whether by the entity or by other parties, should
receive the same accounting treatment. Under IFRS 2, a cancellation of equity instruments is accounted for as an
acceleration of the vesting period. Therefore any amount unrecognised that would otherwise have been charged is
recognised immediately. Any payments made with the cancellation (up to the fair value of the equity instruments} is
accounted for as the repurchase of an equity interest. Any payment in excess of the fair value of the equity
instruments granted is recognised as an expense.

Vesting conditions are service conditions and performance conditions only. Other features of a share-based payment
are not vesting conditions. Under IFRS 2, features of a share-based payment that are not vesting conditions should
be included in the grant date fair value of the share-based payment, The fair value also includes market-related
vesting conditions. This will not affect the Group as the only current condition on share based payments relates to
service.

No other standard is expected to effect the financial statements,

The Group does not intend to apply any of these pronouncements early.
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Notes 2007 2006

£000's £000°s
Revenue 27 9,098 8,223
Cost of sales 27 (4,108} (3,402)
Gross profit 4,990 4,821
Selling and marketing costs (623) (251)
Administration expenses (5,127 (4,505)
Other operating expenses (118) (106)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 5 (3,35T) (330)
Flotation/fundraising costs - (1,296}
Share based compensation (240) (325}
Restructuring costs (363) -
Operating loss (4,836) (2,192)
Finance costs 6 - (14)
Finance income 6 180 237
L.oss before income tax {4,656) (1,969)
Income tax expense 9 432 {83)
Loss for period (4,224) (2,052)

Attributable to:

Attributable to equity shareholders of Mobile Streams Ple (4,224) (2,052)
Total and continuing earnings per share Pence per Pence per
share share
Basic and basic 7 (12.024) (6.753)
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Notes 2007 2006
£000's £000°s
Assets
Non-current
Goodwill 12 977 2,464
Intangible assets 12 2,516 2,923
Property, plant and equipment 11 409 405
Available for sale financial assets 13 467 © 382
4,369 6,174
Current
Trade and other receivables 14 3,248 2,743
Cash and cash equivalents 15 2,301 4,073
5,549 6,816
Total assets 9918 12,990
Equity
Equity attributable to the equity
holders of Mobile Streams Ple
Called up share capital 19 71 69
Share Premium 10,468 10,290
Shares to be issued 19 479 637
Translation reserve (182) (178)
Retained earnings (6,001) (2,017
Total equity 4,835 8,801
Liahilities
Non-current
Deferred tax liabilities 17 306 735
Current
Trade and other payables 16 4,283 3,341
Provisions 18 442 -
Current tax liabilities 52 113
4,777 3,434
Total liabilities 5,083 4,189
Total equity and liabilities 9.918 12,990

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors and were signed on its behalf by:

s

A Colquhoun
Finance Director

25 March 2008
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Lquity attributable to the equity holders of Mobile Streams Ple

Called Share Shares to  Translation  Retained Total
up  premium be issued reserve  earnings Equity
share

capital

£000’s £000°s £000°s £000°s £000's £000’s
Balance at 1 January 2006 1 165 - - (290) (124)
Exchange differences on
trapslation of foreign operations - - - (178) - {178)
Net income recognised directly
in equity - - - (178) - (178)
Loss for the year to 31
December 2006 - - - - (2,052) (2,052)
Total recognised income and
expense for the period - - - (178) (2,032) (2,230)
Employee share based
compensation - - - - 335 325
Shares issued 68 10,125 - - - 19,193
Shares to be issued - - 637 - - 637
Balance at 31 December 2006 69 10,290 637 (178) (2,017) 8,801
Balance at 1 January 2007 69 10,290 637 (178) 2,007 8,801
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations - - - {4) - {4)
Net income recognised directly
in equity - - - (4) - e
L.oss for the year to 31
December 2007 - - - - (4,224) (4,224)
Total recognised income and
expense for the period - - - (4) (4,224) (4,228)
Employee share based
compensation - - - - 240 240
Shares issued 2 178 - i} - 180
Shares to be issued - - (158) - - (158)
Balance at 31 December 2007 71 10,468 479 (182) (6,001) 4,835
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Notes
2007 2006
£000’s £000's

Cash flows from operating activities

Resuit for the period before tax (4,656) (1,969)
Adjustments

Share based payments 240 325
Depreciation 123 48
Amortisation 1,028 482
Interest received (180) (237
Impairment of intangibles and goodwill 2,206 -
Interest expense - 14
Changes in trade and other receivables (505) (371)
Changes in trade and other payables 1,384 370
Income tax paid (64) (192)
Total cash flows from operating activities (424) (1,730)
Cash flows from investing activities

Additions to property, plant and equipment {180} (454)
Additions to other intangible assets {1,282) (802)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (net of cash acquired) - (2,379)
Available for sale financial assets (87) (382)
Interest received 180 216
Total cash flows from investing activities (1,369} (3,801}
Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid - (14)
Issue of share capital (net of expenses paid) 23 9,404
Total cash flow from financing activities 23 0,430
Net change in cash and cash equivalents {1,770} 3,949
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 4,073 268
Exchange (losses) on cash and cash equivalents (2) (144)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 15 2,301 4,073
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1, GENERAL INFORMATION

Mobile Streams Pl (the Company) and its subsidiaries (together 'the Group') deliver mobile media solutions via
distribution, content and an integrated technology platform, Vuesia. The Group has subsidiaries based around the
world in Europe, Asia, North America and Latin America. The Group has made various strategic acquisitions to
build its market share in these regions.

The Company is a public limited company incorparated in the United Kingdom. The address of its registered office
is Medius House, 63-69 New Oxford Street, London, WCIA 1DG,

The Company is listed on the London Stock Exchange's Alternative Investment Market.
These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2008,
2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are evaluated on a regular basis and are based on historical experience and other factors,
such as expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

2.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. These estimates, by definition, will rarely equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy.
The recoverable amount of cash-generating units has been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require estimates to be made. Refer to note 12.

(b) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. Judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions/calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome is different to what is initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions.

{c) Intangible assets

The Group is required to identify and assess the useful life of intangible assets and determine if there is a finite or
indefinite life. Judgement is required in determining if an intangible asset has a finite life and the extent of this finite
fife in order to calculate the amortisation charge on the asset. The Group tests annually whether intangible assets
have suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy. The recoverable amount of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require estimates to be
made. Where there is no method of valuation for an intangible asset, management will make vse of a valuation
technique to determine the value of an intangible if there is no evidence of a market vaiue. In doing so certain
assumptions and estimates will be made, Refer to note 12

Page 26



MOBILE STREAMS PLC
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2007
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d) Share based paymenis

The Group is required to measure the fair value of equity settled transactions with employees at the grant date of'the
equity instruments. The fair value is determined by using the Black-Scholes method. This requires assumptions
regarding interest free rates, share price volatility and expected life of an employee share option. The volatility of
the Company's share price on each date of grant was calculated as the average of volatilities of share prices of
companies in the Peer Group on the corresponding dates. The volatility of share price of each company in the Peer
Group was calculated as the average of annualized standard deviations of daily continuously compounded returns on
the Company's stack, calculated over 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 years back from the date of grant, where applicable. The risk-
free rate is the yield to maturity on the date of grant of a UK Gilt Strip, with term to maturity equal to the life of the
option. In our experience the expected life of an employee share option is 5 years.

) Deferred taxation
Judgement is required by management in determining whether the Group should recognise a deferred tax asset.
Management considered whether there is sufficient certainty its tax losses available to carry forward would

ultimately be offset against future earnings, this judgement impacts on the degrees to which deferred tax assets are
recognised (see note 9).

3. DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS' REMUNERATION AND INTERESTS

The Directors are regarded as the key management personnel of the Mobile Streams Ple.

Charges in relation to remuneration received by key management personnel for services in ail capacities during the
years ended 31 December 2007 are as follows:

2007 2006
£000°s £000°s

Short- term employee benefits
- salaries/remuneration 240 369
- social security costs 24 35
Share-based payments - 169
264 573
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4, SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE GROUP'S AUDITOR AND NETWORK FIRMS

During the year the Group (including its overseas subsidiaries) obtained the following services fram the
Group's auditor at costs detailed below:

2007 2006
£000's £000's
Fees payable to company auditor for the audit of parent company and
consolidated accounts 64 44
Non-Audit services:
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for other services:
The andit of company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 5 4
Interim procedures 15 -
Tax compliance and advisory services 7 41
Advisory work on acquisitions - 92
Advice relating to fund raising and initial public offering, including acting
as reporting accountant - 116
91 297
5. DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
2007 2006
£600’s £000’s
Depreciation 123 48
Amortisation 1,028 482
Impairment of goodwill 1,496 -
Impairment of other intangible assets 529 -
Impairment of content 181 -
3,357 530

The Group incurred a total impairment charge of £2,206,000 relating to poodwill and intangible assets. The
impairment charge under IFRS differs to the impairment charge under UK GAAP as follows:

Impairment under UK GAAP 1,583,000
Additional impairment under IFRS 623,000
Total 2,206,000

The additional impairment under IFRS relates to deferred tax on intangibles assets acquired on business acquisition.
IAS 12 requires the Group to add deferred tax on intangibles assets acquired via business combinations to goodwill
and impair test annually. Further detail of the impairment can be seen in note 12.
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6. FINANCE RECEIVABLE/(PAYABLE)

2007

£000's

Interest receivable 121
Other interest receivable 59
180

Bank interest payable -
Net interest receivable 180

2006
£000's

[[9)
LA sy
—

2]
-~

(14}

223
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7. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable to equity holders of the Company by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the period.

Reconciliations of the earnings and weighted average number of shares used in the calculations are set out

helow.

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Loss for the financial period

for adjusted earnings per share
Loss for the financial period

Add back: flotation/fund raising costs
Add back: share compensation expense

Add back: impairment of intangibles and goodwill
Add back: depreciation and amortisation

Adjusted loss for the period

Weighted average number of shares

For basic earnings per share
For diluted earnings per share

Adjusted basic earnings per share
Adjusted diluted earnings per share

31 31
December December
2007 2006
Pence per Pence per
share share
(12.024) (6.753)
£000's £000's
(4,224) (2,052)
£000's £000°s
4,224) {2,052)

- 1,294

240 325

2,206 -
1,151 530
(627) 99
Number of Number of
shares shares
35,128,404 30,384,461
35,128,404 31,872,658
Pence per Pence per
share share
(1.785) 0.325
(1.785) 0311

The adjusted EPS has been calculated to reflect the underlying profitability of the business by excluding the

flotation and fund raising costs, and share compensation expense.

The Company is required to issue a further 620,268 shares to satisfy the deferred consideration relating to
the acquisition Mobile Streams Europe GmbH (formerly Cyoshi Mobile GmbH) and 629,020 shares under
share options schemes. These have been excluded in calculating the dilated earnings per share as losses

were incurred during the period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8. BIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

Less: staff costs capitalised within media
platform costs

The average number of employees during the year was:

Management
Administration

Remuneration in respect of Directors was as follows:

Emoluments

2007 2006
£000's £000's
3,360 2,569
449 281
3,809 2,850
(732) (380)
3,077 2,470
2007 2006
Number Number
7 7

94 71

101 78
2007 2006
£000's £000s
278 404
278 404

The amounts set out above include remuneration in respect of the highest paid director as follows:

Emoluments

2007 20006
£000's £000's
104 175
104 175
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The tax charge is based on the loss for the year and represents:

2007 2006
£000's £000's
Loss for the year before taxation (4,656) (1,96%)
l.oss multiplied by standard rate
of corporation tax in the United Kingdom of 30% (1,397) (5391)
Expected tax expense (1,397) (391)
Adjustment for tax-rate differences . 7 -
Adjustment for non-deductible expenses
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 837 450
Deductions following exercise of EMI options {66) 25
Relating to goodwili impairment/amortisation (344) (26)
Excess of depreciation over capital allowances 348 @an
Prior year tax adjustments 37 -
Overseas taxation and losses 138 312
Actual tax expense, net (432) 83
Comprising
Current tax expense 3) 109
Deferred tax (expense), income, resulting from the (429) (26)
- origination and reversal of temporary differences (429) (26)

Please refer ta note 17 for information on the entity’s deferred tax assets and liabilities,

The Group has approximately £2.6m trading losses to offset against future trading profits. At this stage no
deferred tax asset has been recognised and will not be recognised until such time as the expansion of the relevant
companies within the Group beyond their initial set up phase deems it appropriate.

The Company has a deferred tax asset estimated at £12,000 relating to a potential UK corporation tax deduction

in respect to employee share options. Due to the uncertainty of the timing of exercise and the current expansion
phase no deferred tax asset has been recognised at this stage.

10. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year (2006: £nil),
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost

At T January 2007
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2007

Depreciation

At 1 January 2007
Provided in the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2007

Net book amount at
31 December 2007

Cost

At 1 January 2006
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2006

Depreciation

At 1 January 2006

Provided in the vear

Foreign exchange movement
Disposals

At 31 December 2006

Net book amount at
31 December 2006

Office
furniture,
Leasehold plant and
improvements equipment Total
£000's £000’s £000°s
44 461 505
- 127 127
44 588 032
4 96 100
8 115 123
12 211 223
32 377 409
Office
furniture,
Leasehold plant and
improvements equipment Total
£000°s £000's £000’s
- 152 152
44 340 384
- (E1D)] (31)
44 461 505
- 81 81
4 44 48
- 2 2
- (31) (31)
4 96 100
40 365 405
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINULD)

12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Mabile Streams’ intangible assets comprise its Vuesia Media Platform, acquired customer relationships, technology-
based assets, non-compete agreements, and media content, Other intangibles consists of customer relationships,
technology based assets, and non-compete agreements. Intangible assets are amortised in line with the Groups

accounting policies.

Cost

At 1 January 2007
Additions

- internally generated
- externally acquired
At 31 December 2007

Accumulated
amortisation and
impairment

At 1 Jannary 2007
Amortisation
Impairment

At 31 December 2007

Net book value at 31
December 2007

Cost

At 1 January 2006
Additions

- internally generated
- externally acquired
At 31 December 2006

Accumulated
amortisation

At 1 January 2006
Amortisation

At 31 December 2006

Net bool value at 31
December 2006

Media
platform Other
development Media intangibles
and software content  Goodwill Total
£000°s £000's £000's £000,s £000's
978 151 2,464 2,364 5,957
1,040 - - - 1,040
110 181 9 - 300
2,128 332 2,473 2,364 7,297
271 15 - 284 570
497 57 - 474 1,028
- 181 1,496 529 2,206
768 253 1,496 1,287 3,804
1,360 79 977 1,077 3,493
Media
platform
development Media Other
and software content  Goodwill intangibles Total
£000°s £000's £000's £000°s £000's
255 - - - 255
633 - - - 633
90 151 2,464 2,364 5,069
978 151 2,464 2,364 5,957
88 - - - 88
183 15 - 284 482
271 15 - 284 570
707 136 2,464 2,080 5,387
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Impairment

The main changes in the carrying amounts of goodwill result from the impairment of previously recognised
goodwill. Impairment is included in “Depreciation, amortisation and impairment” expenses in the income
statement.

The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as follows:

Subsequent to the annual impairment test for 2007, the carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to the following
cash generating units:

2007 2006

£000’s £000°s

The Nickels Group - 310
Mobile Streams Europe GmbH - 1,186
Mobile Streams (Hong Kong) Limited 977 968
977 2,464

The recoverable amounts for the cash-generating units given above were determined based on value-in-use
calculations, covering a three year forecast assuming growth from further developing the existing customer
relationships and broadening the content repertoire offering. Growth and discount rates used in the valuation of
cash-generating units were as follows:

The Nickels Group Mobile Streams Europe Mobile Streams {Hong

GmbH Kong) Limited
Growth rates 3% 3% 3%
Discount rates 30% 16% 17%

Key assumptions relating to the valuation of intangibles and goodwill were based on past experience. This includes
assumptions for discount rate, growth rates and projected cashflows for cash generating units.

The forecast for Mobile Steams’ European was adjusted in 2007 for a decline in on portal revenues and slower than
expecled increase in off-portal revenues, Lmpairment testing, taking into account these developments, resulted in the
full impairment of goodwill.

The forecast for The Nickels Group Inc was adjusted in 2007 for a decline in revenues. Impairment testing, taking
into account these developments, resulted in the full impairment of goodwill.

The impairment review of Mobile Streams’ (Hong Kong) Limited showed no indication of impairment.

The related impairment loss of £2,025,000 (2006: nil) was included in “depreciation, amortisation and impairment™
in the income statement and attributed as follows:

Customer Goodwill Total

relationships
£000°s £000°s £000°s
The Nickels Group 144 310 454
Mobile Streams’ GmbH 385 1,186 1,571
529 1,496 2,025
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As a result of the developments in the European business during 2007, Mobile Streams’ management expects lower
revenue growth and profits from Mobile Streams Europe GmbH and the Nickels Group. Expectations were revised
due to increased competition and a slower than expected opening up of the mobile internet, and in The Nickels
Group due to slower revenue growth and lower operating profits from the Nickels Group are due to fewer hit title
ringtones from its content repertoire and increased competition,

Apart from the consideration described in determining the value in use of the cash generating units described above,
the management of Mobile Streams in not currently aware of any other probable changes that would necessitate
changes in its key estimates.

Other intangible assets

Maobile Streams” other intangible assets comprise acquired customer relationships, technology based assets, own
software development and media content. The carrying amounts for the reporting periods under review can be

analyzed as follows:

2007
The Nickels Group Mobile Streams GmbH Mobile Streams (Hong
Kong) Limited
£000%s £000°s £000°s
Customer relationships 7 443 25
Technology-based assets - 140 450
Non-compete agreement - - 12
7 583 487

2006
The Nickels Group Mobile Streams GmbH Mobike Streams (Hong
Kong)} Limited
£000°s £000%s £000°s
Customer relationships 193 1,078 32
Technology-based assets - 183 578
Non-compete agreement - - 16
193 1,261 626

Customer relationships recognized on the acquisition of Mobile Streams Europe GmbH and The Nickels Group
were subject to impairment testing and were consequently partially impaired.

All amortisation and impairment charges are included in “depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-
financial assets” in the income statement. Total impairment relating to The Nickels Group (£454,000) and Mobile
Streams’ GmbH (£1,571,000) are shown in the American and European operating segments respectively.
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Media content
An impairment of £181,000 relating to media content was recorded in Mobile Streams Ple.

During the year the Group invested in media content, revenues generated from this content have been below
expectation, consequently management has conducted an impairment review and subsequently recorded an
impairment. Impairment charges are included in “depreciation, amortisation and impairment” in the income
statement.

13. AVAILABLE FOR SALE ASSETS

The Group, through its wholly owned subsidiary Mobile Streams Inc, has invested £382,000 in Mobile
Greetings Inc.

The investment was in the form of interest bearing convertible loan stock, but was converted to share
capital during the period. Mobile Greetings’ principal activities are the creation and publication of mobile
phone content,

The Group, through the parent company invested £85,000 in FunkySexyCool Inc in the form of share
capital.

2007 2006

£000’s £000's

At 1 January 382 -
Additions 85 382
At 31 December 467 382

Available for sale assets have been fair valued at the carrying amount at the balance sheet date. Management deem
there to be no change in the fair value during the period.

In valuing ‘available for sale assets’, management were required to make key assumptions and estimates relating to
expected cashflows, growth rates and discount rates, Assumptions and estimates were based on past experience.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2007 2006

£000's £000's

Trade receivables 1,480 2221
Accrued receivables 1,068 522
Other taxes 85 -
Prepayments 615 -
3,248 2,743

The carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value.

All of Mobile Streams trade and other receivables have been reviewed for indicators of impairment. Certain trade
receivables, on the basis of age and collectability were found to be impaired and a provision of £37,000 (2006: £Nil)
has been recorded accordingly.

In addition, some of the unimpaired trade receivables are past due as at the reporting date. The age of financial
assets past due but not impaired is as follows:

2007 2006
£000°s £000°s
Not more than 3 months 48 114
More than 3 months but not more than 6 months 15 5
More than 6 months but not more than 1 year 1
More than 1 year - 2
15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVILENTS
Cash and cash equivalents include the following components:
2007 2006
£000°s £000's
Cash at bank and in hand 2,301 4,073
16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2007 2006
£000's £000's
Trade payables 1,051 1,244
Other taxation and social security 152 2l
Other payables 237 208
Accruals and deferred income 2,843 1,798
4,283 3,341

All amounts are short term. The carrying values are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.
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17. DEFERRED TAXATION ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Balance Balance Balance
1Jan  Recognised  Recognised 1 Jan  Recognised Tax rate 31 Dec
2006 in income in equity 2007 inincome  adjustment 2007
£000’s £000°s £000°s £000°s £000’s £000°s £000°s

Deferred tax lability:
Intangibies - 650 - 650 (344) - 306

Property, plant and

equipment - 85 - 85 16 €] 94
Losses available - - - - (94) - (94)
- 733 - 735 {422) (7 306

Deferred tax on intangibles has decreased as a result of impairment and amortisation,
Deferred tax on property, plant and equipment increased a result of excess depreciation over capital allowances.

The tax rate adjustment relates to a movement in the UK corporate tax rate from 30% to 28% effective 1 April 2008,
This requires the Group to adjust deferred tax on property, plant and equipment to the new rate.

18. PROVISIONS

Onerous Trade
contracts Other receivables Total
£000's £000's £000°s £000's
Balance 1 January 2007 - - - -
Maovement 130 275 37 442
Balance 31 December 2007 130 275 37 442

During the year the Company entered into a number of contracts with engeing service and financial obligations, in
some instances the cost of the ongoing obligations are in excess of the anticipate future associated revenues, where
this is the case the anticipated future losses have been provided for. Future losses have been estimated based on
current and forecasted analysis of the relevant contacts, all of which be concluded during 2008.

Provisions have also been made for legal costs and compensation payments required (o settle litigation relating to
intellectual property rights infringement and claims from former employees. Due to the inherent uncertainties of the
outcome of such claims management has estimated the total cost of settlement based on advice received from legal
advisers. Management anticipates that all outstanding claims will be resolved during 2008.
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19. SHARE CAPITAL

Number of shares

(000°s)
Balance at 1 January 2007 34,640
New share issues 1,008
Balance at 31 December 2007 35,648

The Company only has one class of shares.

The total number of shares issued is 35,647,924 (December 2006: 34,639,691) with a par value of £0.002 per share.
All issued shares are fully paid.

2007 2006
£000's £000's
Authorised
69,150,000 ordinary shares of £0.002 each
(2006: 69,150,000} 138 138
Allotted, called up and fully paid: 35,647,924 ordinary shares of £0.002 each (2006:
34,639,691 ordinary shares of £0.002 each) 71 69

On 23 January 2006 a bonus issue on a 48 for 1 basis was made to existing shareholders of fully paid up ordinary shares.

On 9 May 2007 the Company issued 206,756 fully paid ordinary shares of £0.002 per share at a value of £0.77 per share
as part of the consideration for the purchase of the share capital of Mobile Streams Europe GmbH (formerly Cyoshi
Mobile GmbH).

During the year the Company issued a total of 801,477 fully paid ordinary shares of £0.002 each as a consequence of the
exercise by employees of options over shares in the Company. The average exercise price paid on these shares was
£0.026 per share. (2006: §48,000 at £80,127)

Shares to be issued

2007 2006

£000°s £000°s

Balance 1 January 637 -
Movement (158) 637
Balance 31 December 479 637

The Company is required to issue a further 620,268 shares to satisfy the deferred consideration relating to the
acquisition Mobile Streams Europe GmbH (formerly Cyoshi Mobile GmbH)
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Options
The table below summarises the exercise terms of the various options over ordinary shares of £0.002 each which have
been granted, and were still outstanding at 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006.

At 31 At 31
December 2007 December 2006
Ordinary Ordinary
shares of shares of
Period of option £0.002 each £0.002 each
Exercise

Date of issue  price Earliest date Latest date Number
Enterprise Management Incentive Scheme
19 Nov 2004  £0.03183* 19 Nov 2005%* 18 Nov 2014 275,625 436,925
01 Mar 2005 £0.03183* | Mar 2006** 28 Feb 2013 - 490,000
0] Feb 2006 £0.8163 1 Feb 2007*** 31 Jan 2016 117,600 120,050
17 Aug 2006  £0.46 17 Aug 2007%¥** 16 Aug 2016 33,500 61,500
07 Dec 2006 £0.40 7 Dec 2007*#+* 06 Dec 2016 287,550 454,050
25 Jul 2007 £0.28 25 Jul 2008%*** 24 Jul 2017 227,000 -
20 Sep 2007 £0.225 20 Sep 2008**#* 19 Sep 2017 320,000 -
1S0O Sub-
Plan
19 Nov 2004  £0.03183% 19 Nov 2005*** 18 Nov 2014 12,250 12,250
Glohal Share
Option Plan
19 Nov 2004  £0.03183* 19 Nov 2005%* 18 Nov 2014 - 9,800
01 Feb 2006 £0.03183* 19 Nov 2005%* 31 Jan 2016 116,375 116,375
01 Feb 2006 £0.8163 1 Mar 2006** 31Jan 2016 52,675 52,675
19 Apr 2006 £0.76 19 Apr 2007%*** 18 Apr 2016 207,468 207,468
02 Aug 2006 £0.465 2 Aug 2007%*** 01 Aug 2016 116,426 116,426
08 Aug 2006  E0.465 8 Aug 2007**** 07 Aug 2016 210,000 210,000
17 Aug 2006  £0.46 17 Aug 2007**+%* 16 Aug 2016 44,235 92,675
07 Dec 2006 £0.40 7 Dec 2007**** 06 Dec 2016 208,450 210,450
27 Jun 2007 £0.39 27 Jun 2008%*** 26 Jun 2017 66,250 -
20 Sep 2007 £0.225 20 Sep 2007+*¥+ 19 Sep 2017 360,000 -
Stand Alone
Option Plans
01 Feb 2006 £0.03183%  |/2/2006%*** 31 Jan 2016 24,500 24,500
15 Feb 2006 £0.87 15 Feb 2007%*** 14 Feb 2016 689,655 689,655
15 Feb 2006 £0.002 1 Mar 2006*%*¥*+** 28 Feb 2015 - 155,077

* Original issue price was £0.078. Due to recapitalisation the adjusted issue price is £0.03183.

** 5004 of the issued options can be exercised on the later of the first anniversary of the grant date (date shown above) or
the date the shares are traded on a stock exchange. 100% of the issued options can be exercised on the later of the second
anniversary of the grant date or the date the shares were traded on a stock exchange.
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#%% 100% of the issued options can be exercised on the later of the first anniversary of the grant date (date shown above)
or the date the shares are traded on a stock exchange.

#4%% 33 33 % of issued options can be exercised on or after the first anniversary of the grant date, 66.67% of the issued
options can be exercised on or after the second anniversary of the grant date, 100% of the issued options can be
exercised on or after the third anniversary of the grant date.

ik Options exercisable immediately issued to employee who left the company after a number of years of service.

*akki# Options fssued pursuant to a non-dilute agreement upon 1PO.

20. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

The Group operates a number of share option schemes in order to attract and maintain key staff. The remuneration
committee can grant options over shares in the Company to employees of the Group. Options are granted with a
fixed exercise price equal to the market price of the shares under option at the date of grant. The contractual life of
an option is 10 years, The Company has made grants throughout 2007. Details of the option plans in place and
exercise periods are shown above in note 19. Exercise of an option is subject to continued employment. Options
were valued using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The fair value per option granted during the year and
the assumptions used in the calculation are shown below:

2 Jan 2 Jan 2 Jan 27 Jun 27 Jun 27 Jun 25 Jul
Date of grant 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007
Share price at
grant (£) 0.3530 0.3550 0.3550 0.3900 0.3900 0.3900 0.2800
Exercise price (£) 0.3550 0.3550 0.3550 0.3900 0.3900 0.3900 0.2800
Shares under
option 5,000 5,000 5,000 22,083 22,083 22,083 226,667
Vesting period
(years) i 2 3 i 2 3 1
Volatility 86.34% 86.34% 86.34% 32.12% 82.12% 82.12% 70.20%
Option Life
(years) 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
Expected life
{vears) 5 3 3 5 3 5 5
Risk-free rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.6615% 5.6615% 5.6615% 5.5142%
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Fair value (£) 0.1245 0.1724 00,2056 0.1320 0.1830 0.2190 0.0825
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Date of grant
Share price at
grant (£)
Exercise price (£)
Shares under
option
Vesting period
(years)
Volatility
Option Life
(years)
Expected life
(years}
Risk-free rate
Dividend yield
Fair value (£}

25 Jul
2007

0.2300
0.2800

226,667

2
70.20%

10

5
5.5142%
1%
0.1162

25 Jul
2007

0.2800
0.2800

226,667

3
70.20%

10

5
5.5142%
0%
0.1404

5

75,667

1
70.10%

10

5
0873%
0%
0.065%

3.0873%
0%
0.0926

75,667

3
70.10%

10

5
3.0873%
0%
0.1120

The volatility of the Company's share price on each date of grant was calculated as the average of volatilities of
share prices of companies in the Peer Group on the corresponding dates. The volatility of share price of each
company in the Peer Group was calculated as the average of annualized standard deviations of daily continuously
compounded returns on the Company's stock, calculated over 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 years back from the date of grant,
where applicable. The risk-free rate is the yield to maturity on the date of grant of a UK Gilt Strip, with term to
maturity equal to the life of the option. in our experience the expected life of an employee share option is 5 years.

Qutstanding at 1 January

Granted
Forfeited
Exercised

Qutstanding at 31 December

Exercisable at 31 December

2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number exercise Number exercise
(000's) price {000's) price
3,524 £0.391 [,882 £0.032
988 £0.251 2,704 £0.549
(341) £0.403 (214) £0.286
(801) £0.026 (848) £0.127
3,370 £0.435 3,524 £0.5391
1,050 £0.439 786 £0.029
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2007 2006
Weighted Weighted  Number
Range of average  Number Weighted average average of Weighted‘ average
exercise exercise of Shares remaining life (years): exercise Shares remaining life (years):

prices price (000's) Expected Contractual price {000's) Esxpected Contractual
£0-
£0.50 £0.325 2,302 3.0 8.9 £0.191 2,430 32 8.9
£0.51 -
£1.50 £0.834 1,068 3.1 8.2 £0.832 1,094 31 9.1

The weighted average share price during the period for options exercised over the year was £0.584 (2006: £0.757).
The total charge for the year relating to employee share based payment plans was £240,000 (2006:£325,000), all of
which related to equity-settled share based payment transactions,

21. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group has no capital commitments as at 31 December 2007. (2006: £45,000 (US590,000)).

22. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Various intellectual property right infringements and legal claims have been made against the Group. Unless
recognised as a provision (see note 18), management considers these claims to be unjustified and the probability that
they will require settlement at the Group’s expense is remote. This evaluation has been backed up by external
independent tegal advice. (2006: £Nil)

Page 44



MOBILE STREAMS PLC
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2007

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

23. OPERATING LEASES

The Group has commitments under operating leases for land and buildings and other leases to pay the following
amounts in the next twelve maonths,

Land and Buildings Other

2007 2006 2007 2006
£000°s £000's £000's £000's

Annual commitments under non-cancellable

operating lease expiring:

Within one year 139 F18 4 13
Within two to five years 157 246 - 2
After five years - 13 - -
296 377 4 15

Lease payments recognised as an expense during the period amount to £252,000 (2006 £174,000).

24. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into a barter transaction with MTV to exchange media rights and wholly owned content for
onscreen advertising totalling £178,000.

25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the period the Group entered in to a trading relationship Zoombak LLC, a related party by virtue of shared
director and chief executive officer. During the period revenue of £193,000 (2006: £Nil} was earned, of which
£118,000 remained outstanding at the balance sheet date.
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26. TRANSITION TO IFRS
26.1 Basis of transition to 1IFRS

The Group's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007 will be the first annual financial statements
that comply with IFRS. These financial statements have been prepared as described in the Groups accounting
policies. The Group has applied IFRS 1 in preparing these consolidated financial statements.

Maobile Streams' transition date is 1 January 2006. The Group prepared its opening IFRS halance sheet at that date.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS 1, the Group has applied mandatory
exceptions and certain optional exemptions from full retrospective application of IFRS.

26.1.1 Exemptions from full retrospective application elected by the Group
a) Cumulative translation differences exemption

The Group has elected to set the previously accumulated cumulative translation adjustments relating to retranslation
of the net investment in foreign operations to zero at 1 January 2006. As this had previously been included with
retained earnings in the UK, GAAP financial statements, no adjustment is shown on the transition to IFRS
reconciliations.

26.2 Reconciliations between IFRS and UK GAAP

The following reconciliations provide a quantification of the effect of transition to [FRS from UK GAAP. The
following reconciliations provide details of the impact of transition on

- equity at 1 January 2006

- gquity at 31 December 2006

-net income 31 December 2006

There has been no cash flow effect as a result of the transition to IFRS, therefore no reconciliation s required.
"The changes to the cash flow are presentational only. The changes are the different presentation of interest,
where interest paid is now included in financing activities and interest received in investing activities, and also
taxation is included in operating, whereas previously it was disclosed separately.
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26.2.1 Reconciliation of equity at 1 January 2006

Assets
Non-Current
Other intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Current
Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity

Equity attributable to sharcholders of
Mobile Streams

Called up share capital

Share premium

Retained earnings

Total equity

Liabilities

Current

Provisions

Trade and other payable

Total Liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Explanation of the effect of the transition to IFRS as at 1 January 2006

(a) Other intangible assets

UK GAAP Effect of IFRS
transition to
IFRS

£000's £000’s £0007s
- 176 176

247 {176) 71
247 - 247
1,524 - 1,524
268 - 268
1,792 - 1,792
2,039 - 2,039
1 - 1

165 - 165
(315) - (315)
(149) - (149)
(149) - (149)
18 - 18
2,170 - 2,170
2,188 - 2,188
2,188 - 2,188
2,039 - 2,039

Reallecation of media platform development from Property, Plant & Equipment

Total impact - increase intangible assets

(b) Property, Plant & Equipment

Reallocation of media platform development to Intangible assets
Total impact - decrease Property, Plant & Equipment

176
176

(176)

(176)
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Detailed explanatory notes:
(i) Media platform development

Media platform development costs were previously capitalised as tangible assets as allowed under UK GAAP.
Under IFRS, software compaonents are recognised as intangibles assets unless they form an integral part of computer
hardware, The media platform development costs do not form an integral part of computer hardware and have
therefore been re-classified as intangible assets.

Accumulated depreciation in relation to the media platform development costs has been reversed and replaced by
amortisation in accordance with the Group's accounting policies. As the same useful life applies the net effect of
reversing depreciation and accounting for amortisation is nil.

(if) Translation reserve

The Group has decided to apply the IFRS exemption allowed under IAS 21 to reset the translation reserve to nil at
opening balance sheet date. The previously accumulated translation reserve is set to nil and applied against retained
earnings at that date. The gain or loss on future disposals of the relevant foreign entities will be adjusted only by the
accumulated translation adjustments arising after the opening IFRS balance sheet date.
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26.2.3 Reconciliation of equity at 31 December 2006

Notes

Assets

Non-Current

Goodwill a
Other intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment C
Available-for-sale asset

Current
Trade and other receivables

Cagsh and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity

Equity attributable to shareholders of

Mobile Streams

Called up share capital

Share premium

Shares to be issued

Translation reserve e
Retained earnings f
Total equity

Liabilities
Non-Current
Deferred tax liabilities £

Current
Trade and other payables h
Current tax liabilities

Total Liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

UK GAAP Effect of IFRS
transition to
IFRS
£000°s £000°s £000°s
3,565 (1,101 2,464
136 2,725 2,861
1,112 (644) 468
382 - 382
5,195 980 6,175
3,742 - 2,742
4,073 - 4,073
6,815 - 6,815
12,010 980 12,990
G9 - 69
10,290 - 10,290
294 343 637
(133) (25) (178)
(1,974) 43) (2,017
8,526 275 8,801
85 650 735
85 650 735
3,286 55 3,341
i3 - 113
3,399 55 3,434
3,484 705 4,189
12,010 980 12,990
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Explanation of the effect of the transition to IFRS as at 31 December 2006

(a) Goodwill

Reverse accumulated amortisation of goodwili for period to 31/12/06

Re-calculation of goodwill on business combinations

Account for deferred tax liability on intangibles uader business combinations per 1AS 12
Accrue expenses relating to business combinations - invoices received after reporting
date

Account for changes to opening balance sheet of acquired entities on business
combinations

Total impact - decrease goadwill

(b) Other intangible assets

Recognise intangible assets on business combinations

Take up amortisation of intangibles on business combinations for peried to 30/12/06
Reallocation of media platform development from Property, Plant & Equipment

Total impact - increase other intangible assets

(c) Property, Plant & Equipment
Reallocation of media platform development to Intangibles
Total impact - decrease Property, Plant & Equipment

{d) Shares to be issued
Re-calculate cost of shares to be issued on business combinations
Total impact - increase shares to be issued

(e) Translation reserve
Reset translation reserve to nil per [IFRS exemption adopted
Total impact - decrease translation reserve

(f) Retained earnings

Reverse amortisation of goodwill for period to 31/12/06

Take up amortisation of intangibles on business combinations for period to 31/12/06
Deferred tax on amortisation of intangibles under business combinations

Reset translation reserve to nil per IFRS exemption adopted
Total impact - decrease retained earnings

{g) Deferred tax liabilities

Account for deferred tax liability on intangibles under business combinations

Offset deferred tax asset on amortisation of intangibles under business combinations
Total impact - increase deferred tax liability

(h) Trade and other payables

Accrue expenses relating to business combinations - invoices received afler reporting
date

Account for changes to opening balance sheet of acquired entities on business
combinations

Total impact - increase trade and other payables

£000°s

123
(2,022}
743

23

32
(L,101)

2,365
(284)

G4d
2,725

(644)
(644)

25)
(25)

123
(284)
93
25

(43)

743
(93)
650
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Detailed explanatory notes:
{i) Business combinations - Goodwill & Intangibles

In accordance with the Group's accounting policies regarding the recognition of intangible assets and goodwill and
in accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations, certain amounts previously classified as goodwill under UK
GAAP following acquisitions made in the period have been re-classified as intangibles under IFRS. Identifiable
intangible assets on business combinations (acquisitions) have been recorded at fair value and have therefore
increased intangible assets. This has in turn reduced the amount of goodwill recorded on business combinations.

Under IFRS goodwill cannot be amortised, but instead must be tested annually for impairment. Intangible assets
with a finite useful life are amortised over their useful life.

The recognition of intangible assets on business combinations results in a deferred tax liability based on the
company tax rate in the region the intangible assets belong, hence increasing goodwill on business combinations. As
the intangible assets are amortised over the useful life, the corresponding deferred tax liability is reduced and a tax
credit recorded in the income staterment.

In determining cost of business combinations, the deferred consideration of shares to be issued is to be valued at the
date of acquisition. Previously reported figures included the cost of the deferred consideration of shares to be issued
based on the share price at reporting date. This has been amended to show the cost of shares at date of acquisition.
An amendment has also been posted for costs relating to acquisition that were incurred after the balance sheet date,
but are known with certainty. These costs have been shown as accrued liabilities.

{ii) Media platform development
As per explanatory notes in 26.2.1 above.
(iii) Translation reserve

As per explanatory notes in 26.2.1 above,
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26.2.5 Reconciliation of net income for the year ended 31 December 2006

Notes UK GAAP Re- Effect of IFRS
classifications  transition to
IFRS
£000% £000’s £000°s £000’s
Revenue 8,223 - - 8,223
Cost of Sales (3,402) - - (3,402)
Gross profit 4,821 - - 4,821
Selling and marketing costs - (251) - 25N
Administration expenses a (5,556) 357 (161} {5.360)
Other operating expenses (1,296) (106) - (1,402)
Operating loss (2,031) - (161) (2,192)
Finance costs (14 - - (14)
Finance income 237 - - 237
Loss before income tax (1,808) - (161} (1,969)
Income tax expense b {176) 93 (83)
Loss for period {1,984) - (68) (2,052)
Explanation of the effect of the transition to [FRS as at 31 December 2006
£000°s
(a) Administration costs
Reverse amortisation of goodwill for period to 31/12/06 123
Take up amortisation on intangibles on business combinations for period to 31/12/06 (284)
Total impact - increase administration costs (161)
(b) Income tax expense
Deferred tax asset on amortisation of intangibles under business combinations 03
Total impact — decrease income tax expense 93

Detailed explanatory notes:

(i) Business combinations - Goodwill & Intangibles
As per explanatory notes in 26.2.2 above.

(ii) Media platform development

As per explanatory notes in 26,2.1 above.
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27, SEGMENT REPORTING

Strategy

The Directors consider there to be one class of business, being the distribution of licensed mebile phone cantent.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group is organised into 4 geographical segments: Europe, North America, Latin

American, and Asia. All operations are continuing,

All inter-segment transfers are priced and carried out at arm’s length.

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2007 are as follows:

Europe North Latin Asia Totals
America America
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Total gross segment sales

- from external customers 3,276 1,917 2,177 1,728 9,098
Operating result 3,276 1,917 2,177 1,727 9,098
Cost of goods sold (1,267) (712) 19 (1,210) (4,108)
Employee expense (1,748) (657) (303) (400) (3,108)
Depreciation and amortisation (530) ¥L))] @7 (34) (670)
Other operating expenses (985) (707) (1,013) {422) (3,129)
Segment operating results (1,254) (238) (87} (338) (1,917)
Interest revenue 87 31 56 G 180
Income tax expense (100} - 92 5 3)

Segment assets 11,932 3,012 1,775 990
Segment liabilities (2,143) {4,054} (2,511} (1,431) 17,709
(10,139)

Capital expenditure 1,231 77 59 100
1,467

Segment impaired losses (1,752) (434) - -
(2,2006)
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The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2006 are as follows:

Europe North Latin Asia Totals
America America
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Revenue
- from external customers 3,539 1,882 324 478 8,223
Segment revenues 3,539 1,882 2,324 478 8,223
Cost of goods sold (1,359 (889) (1,014) (318) (3,580)
Employee expense (1,036) (796) (363) (273) (2,470}
Depreciation, amortisation and
impairment of non financial assets (275) (61) (8) (3H (375)
Other operating expenses (1,544) (176) (466) (103) (2,289)
Segment operating results (675) (440) 471 (247) (491)
Interest revenue 288 - - 2 290
Interest expense (12) (54) (2) - (68)
Income tax expense 100 - 9 - 109
Segment assets 12,303 2,524 1,389 423 16,639
Segment liabilities (1,795) (3,216) (1,967) (493) (7,471)
Capital expenditure 970 258 15 14 1,257
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The totals presented in the Groups operating region segments reconcile to the entity's key financia! figures as

presented in its financial statements as follows:

Sepment revenues
Total segment revenues
Entity’s revenues

Segment resualts

Total segment operating results reported
Interest revenue

Unallocated operating income and expenses
Entity’s operating result

Result from equity accounted investments
Finance costs

Other financial result

Eatity’s result for the period before tax

Segment assets
Total segment assels
Consolidation
Entity’s assets

Segment liabilities
Total segment liabilities
Consolidation

Entity’s liabilities

2007 2006
£000's £000’s
9,098 8,223
9,098 8,223
(1,917) (491)
180 237
(713) (405)
(2,450 (659)
- (14)
(2,206) (1,296)
(4,656) (1,969)
17,709 16,639
(7,191) (3,649}
9,918 12,990
10,139 7,471
(5,056) (3,282)
5,083 4,189
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28. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

On 19 April 2006, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of Mobile Streams Europe GmbH {formerly Cyoshi
Mobile GmbH).

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

Purchase consideration £000’s
- cash paid 1,388
- shares issued 159
- shares to be issued 478
- direct costs relating to the acquisition 96
Net assets acquired {19
Caost of business combination 2,102
Identifiable intangible assets:

- customer relationships (1,252)
- technology based assets (213)
Goodwill before deferred tax 637
Deferred tax recognised on intangible assets 549
Total goodwill recognised 1,186

The goodwill is attributable to the significant future benefits expected to arise from Cyoshi's position of leading
independent producer and distributor of mobile media across Europe. This acquisition strengthens the Group's reach
in Europe.

"The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows:

Fair value Acquiree's

£000°s carrying

amount

£000°s

Cash and cash equivalents 11 11
Receivabies 113 113
Payables (103) {105)
Net assets required 19 19
Purchase consideration settled in cash 1,388
Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary acquired (10
Cash outflow on acquisitions 1,378

Part of the purchase consideration for the acquisition is in the form of shares issued and shares to be issued. The fair
value of shares issued was determined based on 206,756 shares issued at the share price at the date of acquisition,
being £0.77 per share, giving a total fair value of £159,202, Fair value of shares to be issued was determined based
on 620,268 shares to be issued at the share price at the date of acquisition, being £0.77 per share, giving a total fair
value of £477,606.

Since acquisition Mobile Streams Europe GmbH has generated a profit of £41,000. Had the acquisition taken place
on 1 January 2006 it would have contributed £441,000 revenue and a loss of £6,000 to the Group in the year to 31
December 2006.
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On 4 August 2006, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of The Nickels Group.

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

Purchase consideration £000°s
- cash paid 230
- deferred cash 123
- direct costs relating to the acquisition 15
Net assets acquired 79
Total purchase consideration 447
Identifiable intangible assets:

- customer relationships (210
Goodwill before deferred tax 237
Deferred tax recognised on intangible assets 73
Total goodwill recognised 310

The goodwill is attributable to the strengthening of the Groups' content generation and distribution business as well
as providing a strategic foothold into the west coast of the US and access to unique music content in high
performing and unique genres, including mobile rights to one of the world's best selling artists.

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows:

Fair value Acquiree's

£000°s carrying

amount

£000°s

Payables (79 )]
Net liabilities acquired (79) (79)
Purchase consideration settled in cash 230
Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary acquired -
Cash outflow on acquisitions 230

Since acquisition The Nickels Group Inc has generated a loss of £5,000. Had the acquisition taken place on 1
January 2006 it would have contributed £497,000 of revenue and £98,000 of profit for the Group in the year to 31
December 2006.

On 8 August 2006, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of Mobile Streams (Hong Kong) Limited
(formerly Mobilemode Limited).
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Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

Purchase consideration £000’s
- cash paid 685
- shares issued 700
- direct costs relating to the acquisition 162
Net liabilities acquired &
Total purchase consideration 1,339
Identifiable intangible assets:

- customer relationships (35)
- technology based assats (638)
- Non compete agreements (17
Goodwill before deferred tax 849
Deferred tax recognised on intangible assets 121
Total goedwill recognised 970

The goodwill is attributable to the increased distribution and relationships in the Asia Pacific region, with a number
of network operators. The acquisition provides the Group with a comprehensive position in Asia Pacific and the
immediate benefit of a strong management team with strong relationships with network operators.

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows:

Fair value  Acquiree's carrying

£000’s amount
£000°s
Cash and cash equivalents 163 163
Receivables 221 221
Fixed assets 2 2
Payables (363) (363)
Income tax (15) (13)
Nat assets acquired 8 8
Purchase consideration settled in cash 685
Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary acquired {163)
Cash outflow on acquisition 522

Part of the purchase consideration for the acquisition is in the form of shares issued. The fair value of shares issued
was determined based on 1,537,736 shares issued at the share price at the date of acquisition, being £0.455 per
share, giving a total fair value of £699,670.

Since acquisition Mobile Streams (Hong Kong) Limited and its subsidiaries has generated a loss £69,000. Had the
acquisition taken place on 1 January 2006 it would have contributed £1,184,000 revenue and a loss of £188,000 for
the Group in the year to 31 December 2006.
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29, RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to currency and liquidity risk, which result from both its operating and investing activities.
The Group's risk management is coordinated in close co-operation with the board of Directors, and focuses on
actively securing the Group's short to medium term cash flows by minimising the exposure to financial markets. .
The most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed to are described below. Also refer to the
accounting policies.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to translation and transaction foreign exchange risk. The currencies where the Group is most
exposed to volatility are US Dollars, Euro, and Argentine Peso.

Currently, there is generally an alignment of assets and Habilities in a particular market, and no hedging instruments
are used. In Latin American markets, cash in excess of working capital is converted into a hard currency such as US
Dollars. The Company will continue to review its currency risk position as the overall business profile changes.

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and liabilities, transiated into Euros at
the closing rate, are as follows.

2007 2006
2000°s £000's
Us EURO ARS Other US EUROE ARS Other
Nominal amounts 5 € h 5 5
Financial assets 969 308 773 1,772 784 247 604 620
Financial liabilities 907 22 368 1,331 746 105 419 760
Short-term exposure 62 286 405 441 38 142 185 (140

Financial assets - - - - - - - -
Financial liabilities - - - - - - - -
Long-term exposure - - - - - - - -

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the net result for the year and equity in regards to the Group's
financial assets and financial liabilities and the British Pound to US Dollar, Euro and Argentine Pesc exchange rates.

Percentage movements used for sensitivity analysis are as follows. Both of these percentages have been determined
based on the average market volatility in exchange rates in the previous 12 months.

2007 2006
US Dollar 3% 7%
EURO 6% 2%
Argentine Peso 4% 7%

If the British Pound had strengthened against the US Dollar, Euro and Argentine Peso by the percentages above
retrospectively, then this would have had the following impact:

2007 2006
£000°s £000°s
US FURO ARS Total US  EURO ARS Total
5 € $ 3 € 5
Net result for the year 2 2 8 12 1 4 20 25
Equity 31 20 3 54 48 - 12 &0
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If the British Pound had weakened against the US Dellar, Euro and Argentine Peso by the percentages above
retrospectively, then this would have had the following impact:

2007 2006
£000’s £000°s
US EURO ARS Total us EURO ARS Total
b € % 5 € 3
Net result for the year 2) @ (&) (12) N {4) (20) 25
Equity &2y 20) &) (34) (48) - (12) (60)

Liquidity risk

The Group/Company seeks to manage financial risk by ensuring sufficient liquidity is available to meet
foreseeable needs and to invest cash assets safely and profitably.

The Group currently has no borrowing arrangement in place and prepares cashflow forecasts which are reviewed at
Board meetings to ensure liquidity.

As at 31 December 2007, the Groups labilities have contracinal maturities which are summarised below:

31 December 2007 Current Non-current
Within 6 months 6 to 12 months 1to 5 years Later than 5 years
£000°s £000’s £000’s £000°s
Trade payables 4,253 30 - -

This compares to the maturity of the Groups financial liabilities in the previous reporting period as follows:

31 December 2006 Current Non-current
Within 6 months 6 to 12 months 1 to S years Later than 5 years
£000%s £000’s £000’s £000°s
Trade payables 3,280 61 - -
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

As used in the financial statements and related notes, the term ‘Company’ refers to Mobile Streams Plc. The
separate financial statemenis of the company are presented as required by the Companies Act 1985. As
permitted by the Act, the separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (“UK GAAP”)

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. The principal accounting policies are
set out below. By virtue of Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the Company is exempt from presenting a
profit and loss account. The Company has taken the exemption not to prepare a cash flow statement under the
terms of FRS 1 (Revised 1996) Cash Flow Statements

The following paragraphs describe the main accounting policies. The policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented.

TURNOVER

Turnover is the total amount receivable by the Company for goods supplied and services provided, excluding
sales taxes. Where the Company is sefling directly to the end customer, the turnover is the amount paid by that
customer excluding sales taxes. Where the customer contracts with a third party, through which Mobile Streams
is distributing its content, turnover is that portion that is payable to Mobile Streams including royalties and
commissions. Revenue is recognised when goods are supplied to a customer.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the Company's balance sheet at cost less provisions for impairment.
TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Depreciation is calculated to write down the cost less estimated residual value of fixed assets over their estimated
useful lives. The following rates and methods have been applied:

Leasehold improvements Over the life of the lease

Plant and equipment 33% straight line

Media platform development 33% straight line

QOffice furniture Between 10% and 33% straight line

Media platform costs represent the cost of the initial development of websites and media platforms, which
support the Company's core operations. The capitalisation is based an matching the cost with anticipated
revenues in future periods.

The Company has continued to invest in a new media platform during 2007 and has capitalised the direct staff
costs incurred during the creation of this asset. The expected useful economic life of the platform is estimated to
be 3 years and the asset is being depreciated on this basis.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets are stated at cost, net of amortisation and any provision of impairment.

Amortisation is calculated to write down the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives. The
following rates and methads have been applies:

Intangible assets Between 2 and 4 years straight line

The intangible assets represent the cost of creating original media content.
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DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax is recognised on all timing differences where the transactions or events that give the Group an
obligation to pay more tax in the future, or a right to pay less tax in the future, have occurred by the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised when it is more likely than not that they will be recovered.

Deferred tax is measured using rates of tax that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date,

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and lizbilities in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date. The exchange differences arising from the retranslation of the opening net investment in subsidiaries are
taken directly to reserves. All other exchange differences are dealt with through the profit and loss account.

OPERATING LEASES
Rentals in respect of leases are charged to the profit and loss account in equal amounts over the lease term.
SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

Employees (including Directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services in exchange for shares or rights over shares (‘equity-settied
transactions’).

Equity settled transactions

The Group has applied the requirements of Financial Reporting Standard 20 “Share Based Payments” to all grants of
equity instruments.

The cost of equity settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the grant date of
the equity instruments granted. The fair value is determined by using the Black-Scholes method.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in retained earnings,
over the periods in which the performance conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (*vesting date”). At each balance sheet date before vesting, the
cumulative expense is calculated, representing the extent to which the vesting period has expired and management’s
best estimate of the achievement or otherwise of non-market conditions and of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest or, market conditions are taken into sccount in determining the fair value of options granted, at
grant date, and are not subsequently adjusted for. The movement in cumulative expense since the previous balance
sheet date is recognised in the income statement, with a correspending entry in equity.

No expense or increase in equity is recognised for awards that do not uitimately vest. Awards where vesting is
conditional upon a market condition are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied.
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Note 2007 2000
£000's £000’s

Fixed assets
Intangible assets 2 31 67
Property, plant and equipment 3 1,390 849
Investments 4 2,354 3,511
Total fixed assets 3,775 4,427
Current Assets
Debtors 5 5,263 4,387
Cash at bank and in hand 530 3,136
Other assefs 75 -
Total current assets 5,868 7,523
Creditors: amounts falling due within
one year & (1,811} (1,567)
Net current assets 4,057 5,956
Deferred tax liability 8 - (83)
Net assets 7,832 10,298
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 9 71 69
Share premium 10 10,468 10,290
Shares to be issued 135 264
Profit and loss account 10 (2,842) (355)
Shareholders' funds 7,832 10,298

The financial statementis were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2008.

prrn s

olgquhoun
Finance Director
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1. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

Less: staff costs capitalised within media
platferm costs

The average number of employees during the year was:

Management
Administration

Remuneration in respect of Directors was as follows:

Emoluments

2007 2006
£000's £000's
1,820 1,329
172 181
1,992 1,510
(875) (380
1,417 1,130
2007 2006
Number Number
4 4

31 28

35 32
2007 2006
£000's £000's
278 404

The amounts set out above include remuneration in respect of the highest paid director as follows:

Emoluments

2007 2006
£000's £000's
104 175
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2. INTANGIBLES

Media
content Total
£000's £000's
Cost
At 1 January 2007 72 72
Additions 181 181
At 31 December 2007 253 253
Accumulated amaortisation
At 1 January 2007 5 5
Charge for the year 36 36
Impairment 181 181
At 31 December 2007 222 222
Net book value at 31 December 2007 31 31
Net book value at 31 December 2006 67 67
3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Office Media
furniture, platform
Leasehold plant and development
improvements equipment and software Total
£000°s £000°s £000°s £000°s
Cost
At | January 2007 44 216 906 1,166
Additions 83 945 1,028
Disposals - - - -
At 31 December 2007 44 299 1,851 2,194
Depreciation
At 1 January 2007 4 50 263 317
Provided in the year 8 37 442 487
Disposals - - - -
At 31 December 2007 12 87 705 804
Net book amount at
31 December 2007 32 212 1,146 1,390
Net book amount at
31 December 2006 40 166 643 849
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4, INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Cost

At | Janvary 2007
Additions

At 31 December 2007

Amount provided
At 1 January 2007
Provided in year

At 31 December 2007

Net book amount at 31 December 2007

Net book amount at 31 December 2006

Investments in Subsidiary undertakings comprise:

Proportion held

Directly by

Mobile

Streams Plc
Mobile Streams Inc. 100%
Mobile Streams De Argentina
SRL 50%
Mebile Streams De Brasil Midia
Digital Para Celulares Ltda 64%
Mobile Streams Chile Ltda 50%
Mobile Streams De Colombia
Ltda 50%
Mobile Streams of Mexico S De
RLDeCV 50%
The Nickels Group Inc -
Mobile Streams Venezuela SA 100%
Mobile Streams Asia Limited 100%
Mobile Streams Australia
Limited Pty -
Mobiie Streams (Hong Kong}
Limited 100%
Mobile Streams Singapore
Limited -
Mobile Streams Europe GmbH 100%

By other
Group
companies

50%

36%
50%

50%

50%
100%

100%

100%

Total held by
Group

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%

£000's
3,553

565
4,118

42
1,722
1,764

2,354

3,511

Country of
incorporation
USA

Argentina

Brazil
Chile

Columbia
Mexico
USA
Venezuela
UK
Australia

Hong Kong

Singapore
Germany

All the subsidiaries’ issued shares were ordinary shares and their principal activities the distribution of

licensed mobile phone content.
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5. DEBTORS
2007 2006
£000's £000's
Trade debtors 606 704
Amounts owed by Group
undertakings 4,194 3,464
Other debtors 463 219
5,263 4,387
6. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2007 2006
£000's £000's
Trade creditors 641 624
Corporation tax - 100
Amounts owed to group undertakings - 197
Other taxation and social security 45 78
Other creditors - 18
Accruals and deferred income 1,125 550
1,811 1,567

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

This note should be read in conjunction with the financial risk management objectives and policies set out in the

Directors report.

Financial assets and liabilities disclosures

Short-term debtors and creditors arising directly from the Group’s operations are excluded from the following

disclosures.

Financial assets

The foreign currency risk exposure to financial assets of the Company at the end of the year was as follows (book

value and fair value):

Presentation currency of Company operation

Sterling Other 2007 Sterling Other 2006
Financial assets
denominated in: £000's £000's £000's £000'’s £000’s £000's
Euro 56 - 56 4 - 4
US Dollar 300 - 306 136 192 328
362 332
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The financial assets included above comprise all amounts held by the Company in the form of cash and bank
deposits. Where possible deposits are held in interest bearing accounts with the highest floating interest rates
available to the Company.

Financial liabilities
The Company had no financial liabilities at the year end (2006 nil).

8. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

£000°s
Deferred tax liability:
At 1 January 2007 85
Current year charge (85)

At 31 December 2007 -

9. SHARE CAPITAL
For details of share capital refer to note 19 to the Group financial statements.
Options

For details of options and share based payments refer to note 20 relating to the Group financial statements.
The total charge recorded in 2007 was £240,000 (2006: 325,000).

10. RESERVES

Profit

Share and loss

premium account

£000's £000's

At 1 January 2007 10,290 (355)
Issue of share capital 178 “
Share based compensation - 240
Loss for the year - (2,727)
At 31 December 2007 10,468 (2,842)
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11. SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE GROUP'S AUDITOR AND NETWORK FIRMS

During the year the Company obtained the following services from the group's auditor at costs detailed
below:

2007 2006
£000's £000's
Fees payable to company auditor for the audit of company 44 24
Non-Audit services:
Fees payable to the company's auditor and its associates for other services:
Tax compliance and advisory services 7 -
51 24

12. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Company has capital commitments totalling at 31 December 2007 (2006: £138,000 (US%270,000)).

13. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Varicus intellectual property right infringements and legal claims have been made against the Company. Unless
recognised as an accrued liability, management considers these claims to be unjustified and the probability that they
will require settlement at the Company’s expense is remote. This evaluation has been backed up by external
independent legal advice. (2006: £Nil}

14. LEASING COMMITMENTS

The Company has commitments under operating leases for land and buildings and other leases to pay the
following amounts in the next twelve months.

Land and Buildings Other
2007 2006 2007 2006
£000's £000's £000's £000's
Annual commitments under non-cancellable
operating lease expiring:
Within one year 59 62 3 6
Within two to five years 12 217 - 10
After five years - 13 -
71 292 3 16

Page 69



MOBILE STREAMS PLC

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2007

NOTLS TO COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During period the Company entered in to a trading relationship Zoombak LLC, with a related party by virtue of
shared director and chief executive officer. During the period revenue of £193,000 (2006: £Nil) was earned, of
which £118,000 remained outstanding at the balance sheet date.
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